
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

WESTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 


C'EDEPJl"L TRADE COMMISSION, 

Pla 

v. 

Navestad aka Paul Richard 
dual and ing business 

as the Cash Grant Institute, 
Global Ad , Global 
Advertising Agency, Domain 
Leasing Company and/or 
Grant , and 

Chintana Maspakorn aka 
Christina Maspakorn 
individually and doing business 
as the Cash Grant Institute, 
Global Ad Agency, Global 
Advertising Agency, Domain 
Leas Company and/or Cash 
Grant Search, 

Defendants. 

Case No. : 

09 Cv 8329 

RECEIVED AND FILED 
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT CLERK 

WESTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

JUN 5 

COMPLAINT FOR CIVIL PENALTIES, PERMANENT INJUNCTION 

AND OTHER EQUITABLE RELIEF 


PIa Commission ("FTC"), for its 

complaint alleges: 

1. The FTC brings this action under Sections 5 (a), 5 (m) (1) (A) , 

13 (b) , 6(a) and 19 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 45(a), 

45(m) (1) (A), 53(b), 56(a) and 57b and Section 6 of the 

and Consumer Fraud and Abuse Prevention Act (the 

tAct"), 15 U.S.C. § 6105, to temporary, 

j-'prel nary, permanent unctive relief, civil c...les, 

Tel 



, ­s of , " tten mcnies, and 0 equi Ie relief, 

Def s' accs or practices olation of Section 

(a) of the FTC Acc, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), the FTC's 

~elemarketing Sales Rule ("~SRn), 16 C.F.R. Part 310. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

2. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action 

pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331, 1337(a), 1345, and 1355, and 15 

u.S.C. §§ 45 (m) (1) (A), 53 (b), 56 (a) and 57b. This action arises 

under 15 U.S.C. § 45(a). 

3. Venue is proper in this District under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391 

(b)-(d) and 1395(a), and 15 U.S.C. § 53(b) 

PLAINTIFF 

4. Plaintiff, the FTC, is an independent agency of the United 

States GoverTh~ent created by statute. 15 U.S.C. §§ 41 - 58. The 

FTC lS charged, ter alia, th enforcement of Section 5(a) of 

the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), which prohibits unfair or 

deceptive acts or practices in or affecting commerce. The FTC is 

also th enforcement of the Telemarket Act, 15 U.S.C. 

§ 101 6108. Pursuant to the emarketing Act, FTC 

promu and enforces the TSR, 16 C.F.R. Part 310, whi 

ts deceptive and abusive t emarketing acts or practices. 

FTC is authorized to tiate federal district court 

its own attorneys, to oin violations of the 

FTC Act, TSR, and to secure such equitable relief as may be 

3.ppropr ate each case. U.S.C. §§ 53(b), 6105. T~e FTC ~s 

also aut~o z o initiate federal district court proc 

its OwTI attorneys, to recover c 1 penalties for vi Iat 



f the TSR if the Attorney General f Is to tiate 

: tigation thin 45 days after rece t of notice from the FTC of 

lts tention to tiate such litigation. 15 U.S.C. § 56(a). 

~ith respect to the instant proceeding, Attorney 

rec ived such notice rom FTC and lined to tiate the 

proceeding. 

DEFENDANTS 

5. all t material to this complaint, acting alone or In 

concert th others, Paul Navestad has formulated, directed, 

controlled or participated in acts or practices set forth in 

s compi . Paul Navestad conducts bus s in this District. 

6. At all times material to this complaint, acting alone or in 

concert wi others, Chintana Maspakorn has formulated, directed, 

controlled or participated in the acts or practices set forth in 

this complaint. Chintana Maspakorn conducts business in this 

District. 

ORDER AGAINST PAUL NAVESTAD 

" The FTC sued Navestar D.M., Inc., Financial ServicesI • 

~Jet',vork-USA, Inc., and Paul Navestad, i dually and as an 

fficer of the corporations, 2000 alleging that the Defendants 

made srepresentations in olation of Section 5 of the FTC Act 

the Telemarketing es e in connection th of to 

sell the Free Cash Grants Program, and the Borrowing Made Easier 

The Court entered a Stipulated F 1 c-udgment 

rfor Permanent Injunct t all De ;::), 

:'I'Ja\/es t in 2002. F'TCTf . •VavestarD.M., Inc.,;::>; a.2 

ces Net~vork-USA! Inc., and Paul Naves tad, iv. No. o 
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6269(T) ( .D.2'1.Y. Stipulated Final and 

Permanent Injunction January 2002. ) Stipulated 

Final Judgment and Order a of terms luding, but not 

imited to, a permanenc ban on advertis , marketing, 

promoting, offering for sale, or sale of any credit-related goods 

or services, or assisting others engaged in the same. Stipulated 

I. A. qCredit-related goods1 Judgment and Order 

or services" are def In the Stipulated Final Judgment and 

Order to inc any business activity that involves 

telemarketing and purports directly or indirectly to provide 

consumers, arrange for consumers to rece , or assist consumers 

in receiving a grant, loan, or other extension of credit. Paul 

Navestad signed an aff t on January 18, 2002 acknowledging 

the he received a copy of the Stipulated Final Judgment and Order 

16, 2002. 

COMMERCE 

8. i\t all t relevant to this complaint, De shave 

maintained a substantial course of trade or business In the 

offering for sale and sale of goods or services via the c ephone 

r affecting commerce, as "commerce" is defined in Section 4 

of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 44. 

THE TELEMARKETING SALES RULE 

AND THE NATIONAL DO NOT CALL REGISTRY 


s directed FTC to presc rules c 

on 

abusive and decept telemarketing acts or practices pursuant to 

Telemarketing Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 6101 6108, in 1994. On 

c 16, 1995, the FTC adopted the Telemarket es Rule 



\t:~e "Orig TSR"), 16 C.P.R. Part 310, cn became effective 

on Dec 31, 1995. On January 29, 2003, the FTC amended the 

:'SR. 68 Fed. . 4580, 4669. On August 29, 2008, the FTC 

amended the TSR again. 73 Fed. 51164, 51204. 

10. The Defendants are "seller[s]" and/or "telemarketer[s]" 


engaged in "telemarketing," as def by TSR, 16 C.F.R. 


5 310.2. 


1 1 things, TSR, as amended in 2003, established
J.~. .~ong other 

a "do not 1" registry, maintained by the Commission (the 

"National Do Not Call Registry" or "Registry"), of consumers who 

do not sh to receive certain types of telemarketing calls. 

Consumers can register their telephone numbers on Registry 

thout either through a toll-free telephone c I or over 

the Internet at 

12. Consumers who receive telemarketing calls to their 

stered numbers can complain of Registry olations the same 

'/'Jay they stered: through a toll-free telephone call or over 

the Internet at or by 0 se contacting law 

en ement auchorities. 

13. Since October 17, 2003, sellers and telemarketers have 


prohibited from initiating an outbound call to a person when 


person's number is on the Registry. 16 C.F.R. 


§ 310.4(b) (1) (iii) (B) 


4. Outbound tel calls include all calls elated to 

e the purchase of goods or s ces, ess of 'Aihe 

the e would occur at time of all or at some 

;::'lcure e. 
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J. s e Oc 003, sellers and tel [laVe been 

ly prohibited from call any :::.elephone a 

area code, unless the seller has first paid the annual fee 

access to the telephone , within that area code, that 

are included in National Do Not Call Registry. 6 C.F.R. 

§ 310.S(a) and (b) 

16. Since October I, 2003, sellers and telemarketers have been 

prohibited from abandoning any outbound telephone call. 16 C.F.R. 

§ 310.4(b) (1) (iv). 

17. An outbound call lS "abandoned" if a person answers it and 

the telemarketer does not connect the call to a sales 

representative within two (2) s of the person's complet 

greeting. Id. 

S. Since December 1, 200S, sellers and telemarketers have been 

prohibit from tiating an outbound call that delivers a 

prerecorded message unless, among other things, the message 

immediate discloses: (I) the ity of the seller; (2) t 

che purpose of the I is to sell goods or ces; (3) 

~ature of the goods or s ces; and (4) in the case of a call 

that can be answered by a consumer, that the person cal ed can 

use an automated interact 'Joice and/or keypress-activated opt 

out mechanism to assert a Do fIot Call request pursuant to 

§ 310.4(b) (1) (iii) A) at any time during the message, and the 

case of a call that could be answered by an answer ne or 

?oicemail ce, t person led can use a colI-free 

eel to asserc a Do Not Call requesc 

5 310.4(b) (1) (iii) (A). 16 C.F.R. 310.4(b) (1) i'J) 

6 



~9 . The TSR ts any seller or tel ter making a 

f se or sl statement to induce any person to pay for 

or ces or to e a charitable contribution. 

C.F.R. § JIG.3 (a) (4). 


"0. Pursuant to Section 3(c) of ~elemarketing Act, 15 U.S.C. 


S 6102(c), and Section 18(d) (3) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 


'j S7a (d) (3), a TJiolation of the A.l',ended TSR constitutes an un ir 


or decept act or practice in or affecting commerce, 


violation of Section S(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 4S(a). 


DEFENDANTS' BUSINESS ACTIVITIES 

21. The Defendants do business as the Cash Grant Institute, 

Global Ad Agency, Global Advertising Agency, Domain Leasing 

Company, and/or Cash Grant Search. 

Cash Grant Institute Operation 

Since on or July 2008, the Defendants have engaged in, 

or caused a telemarketer to engage in, initiating outbound 

tel calls to consumers throughout country whose 

telephone numbers are on the National Do Not Call Registry. 

23. The Defendants' calls are sales calls made to induce 

or services.Durchase of 

24. Thus, the Defendants have engaged in telemarketing a 

DIan, program, or campaign conducted to induce the purchase of 

goods or s ces use of one or more telephones and which 

'nvo mo~e than one interstate call. 

Consumers answered the Defendants' calls, and been 

jected t messages. 

7 



6. Consumers have also had prerecorded messages left on their 

machines or vOlcemail services. 

7. ~he content of a message from t Grant Insticute is as 

follows: 

s message is from the Cash Grant Institute 

~\fashingt:on D. C . Our phone number is 202-683-1404. 

This is not a sales call. "1e are calling to let you 

!::r.ow about ~ grant money available from the f 

state and local gover~ments. In addition, we are 

calling to let you know that you qualify for money from 

public and e foundations and non-profit 

zations as well as money from wealthy individuals 

who give away money to people Ii you to P yo'J 

overcome your financ problems. Over 50 million 

dollars is waiting to be g away right now. You may 

be el e to receive up to 25,000 dollars in 

, 2.1.on-prorit or e foundation money that 

you would never have to repay. quickest way to get 

access to some of money is to go to 

requestagra2.1.t dot com, that's r-e-q-u-e-s-t-a-g-r-a-n-c 

t com. In to qualify, you will 2.1.eed to have a 

~lalid email address and a telephone number. Start the 

process ght 2.1.0":J. Go to requestagrant dot com. For 

t~onal information, lour Capitol 11 office at 

::;02-683-1404. 

::;8. The Defendants' prerecorded messages lude across-

board statement made 0 consumers that quali for money 

8 




~rcm lie private _ lons and non-profit organizat 

is ~ell as money from ~ealthy s who give away ~oney to 

Ie like them 0 he them overcome their financial problems. 

::::n ity, a grant is not preordained or instantaneous. 

ically, a consumer must fill out an application, meet certain 

criteria, and then a provider must make a determir.ation as 

the grant should awarded to the consumer. ?here is 

no guarantee that a consumer will, fact, receive a grant. 

30. In addition to calling consumers on the Registry and making 

a false statement, the Defendants have led to pay the red 

fee to access the Registry, have abandoned Is, and have also 

failed to, thin two seconds after the completed greeting of the 

person called, disclose the identity of the seller, that the 

purpose of the 1 is to sell goods or services, and the nature 

of goods or services. Defendants have also iled to 

ate following these disclosures, an automated 

eraetive voice and/or keypress activaced opt-out ffiechanism 

available to use at any c during the ffiessage in calls that 

ou be answered by a person, and/or a toll- ::lumber that 

onnects to the opt-out ~echanism to assert a Do Not 

calls that could be answered by an answering machine or 

voie 1 service. 

1. Furthermore, the Defendants' prerecorded ~essages rect. 

:::;nsumers to Defendants' websi te req'Jestagranc. c:)In. 

Defendants' ite ludes the statements that "Free Grant 

1 • 1 ""is .l..aC.l..e .Lrom Federal, State and Local 

CoverrL.'1lents, " and chat "Free Grant ~;Ioney is also available trom 



lic & pr e foundations, non profit organizat 

emoney from wealthy Is "vvho away money to help 

~n need." website includes the option led \\ Get lYle 

" 

32. The Defendants' website requestagrant.ccm does not provide 

'=:francs. 

33. Instead, requestagrant.com website refers consumers to 

yet another grant-related website or entity whi cr.an:;res a fee 

t which does not provide grants to overcome consumers' 

financial problems. 

Defendants' Other Businesses 

34. The Defendants multiple websites in addition to 

requestagrant.com. 

35. One of the other websites is cashgrantsearch.com. This 

ite includes the statement \\ come to Instant Cash Grants". 

7he website claims an address washington, DC and features 

pictures of the Uni States Capitol building and Pres 

Obama. 

36. 7he Defendants' website also a of statements 

about availabili likelihood of obtaining a 

such as the following: 

- Welcome to CashGrantSearch.com Source of Free from 

the Government 

d you know grant money sts r almost any 

purpose and s not need to be repaid? 

you know that many caDs are recei KS for 

almost 525,0007 

http:CashGrantSearch.com
http:cashgrantsearch.com
http:requestagrant.com
http:requestagrant.com


- Grants are avail e to everyone: 

Students 


le Homs 


or Citizens/Reti 


sabled people 


~Jnempl or 
 loyed 


Businessman 


dows or dowers 


Parents 


Low Income Sarners. 


37. ~he ~efendants' website cashgrantsearch.com does not provide 

s. 

38. Instead, the ite refers consumers to yet another 

related 	website or enti which s a fee but which does not 

governrnent grants to everyone for almost any purpose. 

39. It s a se statement to claim that goverr~ent s are 

available to everyone almost any purpose. 

VIOLATIONS OF THE TELEMARKETING SALES RULE 


COUNT I 


40. In numerous tances, in connection with tel ting, the 

Def 	 s or a telemarketer to engage 

tiat an outbound tel call to a person's t 

on the National Do Not Call Registry violation of the 

~SR, 16 C.F.R. § 310.4(b) (1) (iii) (B) 

COUNT II 

4 l:n numerO'1S tances, connection eh te emarket the 

::Jefendants initiated, or caus others to tiate, an 

(JU call to a tel th a cJen 

11 


http:cashgrantsearch.com


~rea code without the Def s/ either rectly or through 

another person, first pay the requi annual fee for access 

t the te ephone numbers, that area code, that are on 

National Do Not 1 istry, violation of 16 C.F.R. § 310.8.-J.. 

COUNT III 

In numerous instances, connection with telemarketing, the 

Defendants have abandoned or caused others to abandon an outbound 

telephone call by failing to connect the call to a sales 

representative within two (2) seconds of the completed greet 

of the person answering the call, in olation of the TSR, ~6 

C.F.R. 	 310.4(b) (1) (iv). 

COUNT IV 

43. In numerous instances on or after December 1/ 2008/ 

connection with telemarket Defendants have initiated 

telephone 	calls delivering prerecorded messages that do 

provide the sclosures red by § 310.4(d) of 

the TSR, and do not include an automated interactive voice and/or 

ss-activated -OUt mechanism to assert a Do Not Call 

request, r a toll-free telephone number to assert a Do Not Call 

request required by § 310.4 (b) (1) (v) (B) (ii) . 

44. The Defendants' practice as alleged in Paragraph 43 lS an 

telemarket practice that violates t TSR, 16 C.F.R. 

310.4(b) (1) (v) (B) (ii). 

<:OUNT V 

45. ~n numerous instances, 	 in the course of tel ting 

r s ces, the Defendants have srepresented, reet or 

ir:.1plicaticn, to consumers chat have already ified fort 

to receive, free money to overcome their 



ial lems order to induce consumers to pay for goods 

or s ces. 

s' practice as alleged in Paragraph 45 lS a 

dec ive telemarketing praceice that violates Section 

10.3(a)(4) of the TSR, 16 C.F.R. § 310.3(a)(4). 

16. De 

VIOLATIONS OF SECTION 5 OF THE FTC ACT 

47. Section 3(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), prohibits 

"unfair or eptive acts or practices in or affecting commerce." 

48. srepresentations or deceptive omissions of material fact 

constitute ept acts or practices prohibited by Section 5(a) 

of the FTC rice, 15 U.S.C. 45(a). 

COUNT VI 

49. In ~umerous instances, the Defendants represent to 

consumers, expressly or by implication, thae they have al 

qualified , or are likely to receive, free grant money to 

overcome their fi~ancial problems. 

50. In tr:~th and i~ fact, in numerous of these insta~ces, ehe 

consumers have not already qualified for, or are not likely to 

mo~ey to overcome their financ problems. 

refore, Defendants' representation as set forth in 

Paragraph 49 is false and misleading and constitutes a decept 

act or prace e in olation Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 

:!::eceive, 

U.S.C. § 45(a). 

COUNT VII 

34 to 36, the 

Defendants represent to consumers, express or icat on, 

]OVerrll'1lent grants are available to everyone for al:llost::iny 

se. 

the means described 



In truth and fact, 	 are not available t 

everyone for almost any purpose. 

There re, the De s' representation as set forth 

I?aragraph 52 is lse and Disleading and constitutes a dec 

act or practice violation Section S(a) of the FTC Act, 15 

U.S.C. § 45(a). 

CONSUMER INJURY 

55. 	 Consumers the United States have suffered and will suffer 

ury as a result of the Defendants' unlawful acts and practices 

violation of the TSR and the FTC Act. In addition, the 

Defendants have been unjust enriched as a result of their 

unlawful acts or practices. Absent injunctive relief by this 

Court, the Defendants are I ly to cont to injure consumers 

and harm the public t. 

THIS COURT'S POWER TO GRANT RELIEF 

6. Sect 13(b) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 53(b), empowers 

s 	 Court to unct and other ancillary relief to 

and remedy any violation of any sian of law arced 

the FTC. The Court, the exercise of its equitable 

urisdiction, may award ancillary relief, including rescission of 

contracts and restitution, dnd sgorgement of ill-gotten es, 

o prevent dnd any olation of any provision flaw 

enforced by the FTC. 

3ect on 5 (m) (1) (A) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45 (m) (1) (A), 

fi ection 4 of Federal C I Penalties Inflati 

l~S t:nent ~.ct 1990, 28 U.S.C. § 2461, as , and as 

:'2plemented 16 C.F.R. § 1.98( ), authorizes s Court to 

:. 	 1 ties of not Dare than $11,000 for each 
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::Jlation of TSR prior 10, 2009, and $16,000 or 

olation of the TSR on or after February 10, 2009. ~he 

iJefendants' ~Jiolations of the TSR ',\Jere committed with tne 

edge required by Section 5(m) (1) (A) of the FTC Act, l5 

U.S.C. § 4s(m) (1) (A). 

58. Section 19 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § s7b, authorizes s 


Court to grant relief. 


59. Sect 6(b) of tne Telemarketing Act, 15 U.S.C. § 6105(b), 


authorizes s Court to grant relief. 


60. This Court, exercise of its equitable jurisdiction, 


may award ancillary relief to remedy ury caused by 


~efendants' violation of any provision of law enforced by 


FTC. 


PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

~\JHEREFORE, PIa iff requests that this Court, as ized 

Sections 5 (a), 5 (m) (1) (A), 13 (b) and 19 of FTC ,=\ct, 15 

U.S.C. §§ 45(a), 45(m)(1)(A), 53(b) and 57b, Section 6 of 

lelemarketing Act, 15 U.S.C. § 6105, and pursuant to its O"Nn 

equitable powers: 

Award Plaintiff such prel unct and ancillary 

:::,elief as may necessary to avert likelihood of consumer 

~nJury during the pendency of s action and to preserve ~ 

ss lity of ef t final relief, including but not 1 

~o, temporary and prel injunctions, an order freez 

~ssets, and appointmenc f a receiver; 

Enter against the Defendants and in favor of 

iff for eacn olation all in s compla t; 



iff monetary Cl L ties from the Def s 

[or every violation of TSR; 

Award relief as Court finds necessary to redress 

jury to consumers resulting from the Defendants' olations of 

the FTC Act and TSR, including but not limited to 

sgorgement of ill-gotten monies; 

5. Enter a junction to prevent future violations of 

the TSR and the F~C Act by the Defendants; 

o. Order Defendants to pay the costs of this action; and 

Award pIa iff such other and additional relief as the 

Court may termine to be just and proper. 

Dated: June 24, 2009 

Respectfully submitted, 

(rVILLARD K. TOM 

Russell Deitch 
Attorney for pI ntiff, 

Trade Commission 
600 Pennsylvania Ave., N.jv. 
Room 288 
;tlashington, D.C. 20580 
202-326-2585 


